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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

fothe Members of NEW RRPD PRIVATE LIMITED

weperton the Audit of the Financial Statements
Vi -5l|:|fl:

i andited the accompanying financial statements of NEW RRPD PRIVATE LIMITED,
92/, North Avenue, Muthamizh Nagar, Chennai, Tamil Nadu, 600118 (“the
ainpany”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of
Jrotitand Loss (Including Other Comprehensive [ncome), Statement of Changes in Equity
aud Stitement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
caents, including material accounting policies and other explanatory information
ticrernalter referred o as the “financial statements”).

st opinion and to the best of our information and according Lo the explanations given
~iealoresaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
VL2015 ("the Act”) inthe manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
cmpanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other
ceounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
't March 31, 2024, and loss, other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
Hows lor the year ended on that date.

<asis tor Opinion

e ceonducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
wditing (SAS) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
duse standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
wie Faancial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
acvordanes with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

W ICAT) topether with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Handial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
aave Tulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and
dppropriale to provide a basis for our opinion. ~pRCEE
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‘wleiation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the Director’s reportbut does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information s materially
inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
glherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash
lfows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
widia, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
‘esponsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
“ppropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

e preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Loard of Directors are also responsible for oversecing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Ourobjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a h/gh’)lcve;i
ofassurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance wi}.}?"@if\r
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dlways detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or-error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of
the Financial Statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

L. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”),
issucd by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section
143 of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
bestof our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books except that the
company has not taken backups of books of account and other books and papers
maintained in electronic mode on Sundays, in a server physically located in India
and except for the matters stated in paragraph 2(h)(vi) below on reporting under
rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flow dealt with by this Reportare in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
are disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) The reservation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith are as stated in paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under
Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 2(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

(8) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure C”,

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) I{tye.(\'/ '
/.‘ o

f

014:in



our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

ii.

.

b.

VI,

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
liducation and Protection Fund by the Company.

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including  foreign entities (Funding Parties), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, as on the date of
this audit report, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, and according to the
information and explanations provided to us by the Management in this
regard nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) as provided under
(1) and (2) above, contain any material mis-statement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Auditand Auditors) Rules,
2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023.

Based on our examination, the Company has used a software application for
revenue, billing and receivables, purchases and payables and inventory
management during the year-ended March 31, 2024, which has a feature.of
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recording the audit trail (edit log) facility. The same has bee??ﬁ
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Further, the audit trail feature operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software application. Also, during the course of our
examination, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being
tampered with.

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
[nour opinion and to the best of our information provisions of section 197 of the
Act are not applicable.

UDIN: 2% (9796 RkEMZza yOYg
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NEW RRPD PRIVATE LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the auditin order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
ol accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 2
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
cevidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.




We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant cthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

UDIN: 24019796 BKEMZQ 4OA4®

For Argee & CO
Chariered Accountants
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NEW RRPD PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2024

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
in the Independent Auditors’ Report]

(a)
A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
(quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, and relevant
details of right-of-use assets.

B. The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management
at reasonable intervals; whether any material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification and if so, whether the same have been properly dealt with in the books of
account.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no immovable
propertics. Accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
revalued its property, plant and lEquipment (including Right of Use assets) during the
year. Accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been
initiated or pending against the Company for holding benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988, as amended and rules made thereunder.
Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(i) (e) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

ii.

(a) The Comipany has a system of physical verification of inventory whereby all items of
inventory are physically verified over a period of time at regular intervals during the
year. Discrepancies, if any between physical inventory and book records are adjusted
in the books as and when the verifications and corresponding reconciliations are
carried out. In our opinion, the frequency of verification, coverage and procedure of
such verification is reasonable and appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in
the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification
ol inventories.

(b) During any point of time of the year, the company has not bee
- . . 3 - . . § ;Jl
working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregattd o



or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets;

ii. According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not
made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security, or granted any Loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited
liability partnership or any other parties. Hence, the requirements under paragraph
3(iii) of the order are not applicable to the company.

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us,there are no loans,
mvestments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and
1806 of the Companies Act, 2013, are applicable and accordingly, the provisions stated
under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

v. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither
accepted any deposits from the public nor any amounts which are deemed to be
deposits, within the meaning of Sections 73, 74,75 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013
and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3(v)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company. Also, there are no amounts outstanding
as on March 31, - which are in the nature of deposits.

vi. The provisions of sub-Section (1) of Section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company as the Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost
records for any of the products of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in
paragraph 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Vii.
(a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax
and Value added tax during the year since effective July 1, 2017, these statutory dues
have been subsumed into GST.

The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax,
Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the
appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax,
Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31,2024
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no dues of Goods and Services Tax, Provident
l'und, Employees” State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess, and other
statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. =5

vill.  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are n
which are not accounted in the books of account which have been su



disclosed as income during the year in Tax Assessments of the Com pany. Also, there are
no previously unrecorded income which has been now recorded in the books ofaccount.
tlence, the provision stated in paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

iX.

(a) The Company has taken loans or borrowings from financial institutions, banks and
government or has not issued any debentures. The company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institution, bank, government or dues
to debenture holders.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

(¢) Inour opinion and according to the information explanation provided to us, no money
was raised by way of term loans during the year. Accordingly, the provision stated in
paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-
lerm purposes by the Company.

(¢) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture. Hence
reporting under the Clause 3(ix)(e) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

() The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture. Hence,
reporting under the Clause 3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

X
(a) In our opinion and according to the information explanation given to us, the Company
did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(x)(a)

of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully, partly, or optionally
convertible debentures during the year. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph
3(x)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Xi;

(a) Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to
the information and explanations given Lo us, we report that no mate vial fraud by the
Company nor on the Company has been noticed or reported durjf y e yeﬁ{ in the
course of our audit. *oé.?%"q 1)




(b) Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to
the information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the
Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the
provisions stated under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there are no whistle-blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

Xii.  The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph
3(xii)(a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Xlil. - According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are
in compliance with Sections 188 of the Act, where applicable and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by applicable
accounting standards. Further, the Company is not required to constitute an Audit
Committee under Section 177 of the Act.

Xiv.
(@) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit
system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the reports of the Internal Auditors, for the period under audit,
issued till the date of our audit report.

xv.  According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, during the
year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with its directors and accordingly, the reporting on compliance
with the provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 in clause 3(xv) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

XVI.
~ (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45 1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph
3(xvi)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities during the year and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xvi)(b)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(¢) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.




XVil.

XViil.

XiX.

XX.

XXI.

have any Core Investment Company (as part of its group. Accordingly, the provisions
stated under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

Basced on the overall review of the financial statements, The Company has incurred cash
losses of 6.79 million in the financial year and ¥4.38 million cash losses in the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Hence, the
provisions stated in paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ~atios (as disclosed in note 44 to the financial sta tements), ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as
and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our verification,
the provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Hence,
reporting under paragraph (xx)(a) to (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have

any Subsidiary, Associate or Joint Venture. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(xxi)
of the Order is not applicable.

UDIN: 240(979¢ BkeMZz g Qoy &
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ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NEW RRPD PRIVATE LIMITED

|[Referred to in paragraph 2(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” in the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of New
RRPD Private Limited on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
New RRPD Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Opinion

In our vpinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based
on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) (the “Guidance Note").

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

adequacy

s andhtheir

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence abou'/k.}ﬁp;
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial state s
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operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
relerence to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with
reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
Lo the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to
linancial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

UDIN: 24 0(9T796 BEMZ ) 4048
For Argee & CO
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Firwzﬂs

Place: Kochi
Date: 2.7 M Ay ?_O'g_lf_



NOW RRMD PRIMATE LR 1IER
Balance Sheat as at 31 TAwch 2071
{Tin Millions unless oth-rvise staterd)

As at As at
FhusY MNOES 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Non-current asse®s
PMroperty, rlant and equ'rm:at 5 252 296
Right of use Assets 5 5.09 6.82
Good il 3 14.60 17.80
lnanciz| assets
Other Financial Asset 7 0.37 0.31
Deferred tax asset (net) A 091 1.69
Mon Current 1ax assets (net) 9 0.00 008
Total nen-current assets 23.49 29.66
Current assets
Inventories 10 16.02 7.3
Financial assets
Trade recelvables 11 14.85 19.08
Cash and cash equivalents 12 1397 D28
Other current assels 13 308 103
Total currert ass~ts 67.92 49,70
Total 2ssets 9141 79.36
EQU.TY ANDLIARILITE S
Pty
Equity share capital 14 0.10 010
Other equity 15 {13.69] {3.29)
Total equity {13.59) (3.80)
Liahbilities
Mon-current liabi'itics
Financial liabilities
Leasae Ly S ilities 16 A07 5.64
Provisions i7 012 0.045
Total nan-cereent llabilitles 4.19 5.69
Curront liahilities
Financial lizbilitirs
Dot rowines 15 R AT 59 10
Pea-ty pavalle s 19
i 1atal oo i ~dina dues of micra crterprises and small enterprises 0.59
Ii) total cutsterding dues nf creadois ather U.an micro enterprise and small enterprise 1.38 204
Leas: Liabil tics 16 1.57 1.43
Cther irv = "2l Faki'itics 20 8.15 13.84
Clher cere 1t liabi™ fes 71 .61 0.85
Provsions 17 0.04 0,01
Tatal eapee: nt lakHivips 100.81 77.46
Total liabiliti~s 105.00 83.15
Total equity and Hpbi ey 91,40 79.36
See accompanyling notes In Lhe financial siatcments 1-44
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our repor: of even date
For Argee & Co, For and on behalf of the Board of Diroctors
Chartered Accountants NEW RRPD PRIVATE LIMITED
Firm Registratig® No.: 0002175 CIN: US13STTN2021PTCI47584
\\&/ /4 tj!'/b,,/
-‘_’/4. M Ramendra Sivakumar Narasimhan Siddharth Upadhyay
Partner Director Director
Membership No: 019796 DIN: 02673314 DIM: 09166236
Place: Kachi Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: Date:

Date: D1.05-2A09 l.;




NEW RRPD PRIVATE LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024

(% in Millions unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Income

Revenue from operation

Other income

Total income

Expenses

Purchase of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventaries of stock-in-trade
Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

Loss before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional items

Loss before tax

Tax expense

Current tax

Deferred tax

Total income tax expense

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Itemns that will not be reclassifled to profit or loss
Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plan
Income tax effect

Total

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive Loss for the:, r

Loss per share

Basic and diluted Earning/ {Loss) per share (INR.)
See accompanying rotes to the financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Argee & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reglstratipn Mo,: 0002175

Partner
Membership ffo: 019796
Place: Kochi

Date: H77.05-200y

MNotes

22
23

24
25
26
27
28
29

30
30

1
1-44

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

275.10 230.93
0.07 0.76
275.17 231.69
265.90 22290
(8.71) (4.86)
8.90 7.32
10.45 845
2.20 2.24
5.42 2.26
284.16 238.31
(8.99) (6.62)
(8.99) (6.62)
0.79 {1.65)
0.79 {1.65)
{9.79) (4.97)
{0.01) oo
(0.01) 0.01
{0.01) o.01
(9.79) (4.96)
(978.51) (496.02)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
NEW RRPD PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: US1397TN2021PTC147584

ANNZ—

Sivakumar Narasimhan

Director

DIN: 02673314
Place: Mumbai

Date:

F o

Siddharth Upadhyay
Directar

DIN: 09166236
Place; Mumbai

Date:



MNEW RRI'D PRIVATE LIFAITED
Statement of changes In equity for the perfod ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023
(% in Millians unless otherwise stated)

(A} Equity share capital

31 March 2024

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid No. of shares Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2023 10,000 010
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errars * s
Restated balance as at 1 April 2023 10,000 010
Changes in equity share capital during the current period (Note 14) - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 10,000 0.10
31 March 2023 31 March 2023

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid No. of shares Amaount
Balance as at 1 April 2022 10,000 010
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors - .
Restated balance as at 1 April 2022 10,000 0.10
Changes in equity share capital during the previous period (Note 14) - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 10,000 0.10

(8) Other equity

Reserve and surplus

Particulars Total
Retained earnings

Balance as at 1 April 2022 1.06 1.06
Changes during the period

Profit for the period 4.97) 4.97)

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (net of tax) 0.01 0.01
Total comprehensive income for the perind (4.96) (4 96
Balance as at 31 March 2023 (3.90) (3.90)
Balance as at 1 April 2023 (3.90) (3.90)
Changes during the period

Profit for the period (9.79) [9.79)

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (net of tax) (0.01) (0.01)
Total comprehensive income for the period (9.79) {9.79)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 (13.70) (13.70)
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-44

As per our report of even date

For Argee & Co, For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accourtarts NEW RRPD PRIVATE LIMITED
Firm Registrgtion No.: 0002175 CIN: US1397TN2021PTC147584

~

""’./ ol
(‘S\\NM% /6 .

CAM Ramendyan FCA Sivakumar Narasimhan ddharth Upadhyay
Partner Director Director
Membership No: 019796 DIN; 02673314 DIN: 09166236
Place: Kochi Place: Mumbal Place: Mumbai

Date: Q_’] 0520 311‘ Date: Date:




NEW RRPD PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
(% in Millions unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

TasHo 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Cash flow from operating activities
(Lass) befare tax {8.99) (6.61)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization expenses 2.20 2,24

Finance cost 10.45 8.45

Interest income (0.07) 0.77)
Operating loss before changes in working capital 3.59 331
Changes In working capital
(Decrease) in Trade Payables 2 (0.07) {6.43)
(Increase) in Inventorles (8.71) (4.86)
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables 4.20 (6.09)
Increase in Other Current Liabilities (0.24) {0.23)
(Decrease)/Increase in Other Financial Liabilities (2.49) n7l
{Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets (0.05) 870
Increase/{Decrease) in provision and employee benefit 008 (0.04)
Increase in non-current assets held for sale s (0.35)
Increase provison for expected credit loss 0.01 .
Cash generated used in operations (3.68) {5.28)
Income tax pald 0.07 [0.08)
Net cash flows used in operating activities (A) (3.61) (5.36)
Cash flow from Investing activities
Payment for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (0.02) {0.90)
Payment of Security Deposits (0.03) -
Interest received 0.03 0.77
Net cash flow used in Investing activities (B) (0.02) {0.13)

Cash flow from Financing activities
Proceeds from fssuance of equity share capital -

Proceeds from short-term borrowings 29.17 .
Principal paid on lease liabilities (1.43) {1.30)
Interest paid on lease liabilities [0.61) (0. 74)
Interest paid (9.83) (7.71]
Net cash flow from financing activities (C) 17.30 (9.75)
Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 13.68 115.25)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 0.28 15.52
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 13.97 0.28

Cash and cash equivalents comprise [Refer note 13)
Balances with banks

On current accounts 13.96 -
Cash on hand 0.01 0.28
Total cash and bank balances at end of the year 13,97 0.28

Reconcilation of the movements of liabilities to cash flows arlsing from financing activities

For the year ended For the year ended

St 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance

Loan from Related Parties 59,30 59.30
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 6,94 1.04
Total Changes from financing cash flows 66.24 50.34
Movement

Cash flows-Related Party Loan 29.17 0.00
Interest paid (12.19) {181]
Interest expenses 9.52 771
Closing Balance

Loan from Related Parties a8.47 59.30
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 4,27 6.94

892.74 66.24




MNEW RRPD PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
{3 in Millions unless otherwise stated)

1. The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Meth~1" as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7, Statement of
Cash Flows as specified in the Companies (Indlan Act ting Standards), Rules, 20.. (as amended).

2. Cash comprises cash on hand, Current Accounts and deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short term balances (with an original maturity of three
manths or less from the date of deposits).

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-44
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Argee & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accopptants NEW RRPD PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: US1397TN2021PTC147584

Sivakumar Narasimhan Siddharth Upadhyay

Director Director
DIN: 02673314 DIN: 09166236
Place: Kochi Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbal

Date: 7. BHE - 0O oy Date: Date:




New RRPD Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1. Company Information:
New RRPD Private Limited (the “Company”) is a private limited company incorporated in India on
November 01, 2021 having its registered office at 2R-92/4, North Avenue, Muthamizh Nagar, Chennai,
Tamil Nadu - 600118

The Cempany is in the business of distribution and marketing of pharmaceutical products, surgical
products and other allied services.

2. Basis of Preparation, Measurement

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Star?ards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2016.

These Standalone financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and on a
going concern basis

Basis of Measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the following
material items which are measured on an alternative basis, required by relevant Ind AS, on each
reporting date:-
e Certain Financial assets are measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial
instruments);
¢ Employee’s net Defined Benefit (assets/liability) as per actuarial valuation; and
* Liabilities for Share-based payments arrangements.

These Standalone financial statements comprise the Balance Sheet at March 31, 2024, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement
of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023;

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where a newly
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires
a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The Standalone financial statements are approved by the Board of Directors on May 27, 2024.

The Standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest million, unless otherwise
indicated.




New RRPD Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

3. Material Accounting Policies

The material accounting policies used in the preparation of the standalone financial statements have
been included in the relevant notes to the standalone financial statements.

A. Current and non-current classification
All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

it is expected to be realized in, or intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle, which is defined to be of twelve months.

it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the balance sheet date; or

it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified

as non-current.

Liabilities
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

it is expected to be realized in, or intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's’ normal
operating cycle;

it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

it is due to be settled within 12 months after the balance sheet date; or

The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting date.

Terms of liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of
equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include the current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are
classified as non-current.




New RRPD Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Stat 2ments

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
B. Use of Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make

estimates and judgements that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as at the Balance

Sheet date, reported amounts of Revenue and Expenses for the year and disclosures of Contingent

liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates and Judgements used in the accompanying

financial statements are based upon the Management's evaluation of the relevant facts and

circumstances as at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting

estimates, if any, are recognized in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future years

affected. Refer Note No 3 for detailed discussion on estimates and judgments.

1. Assumptions and estimates uncertainties: Note (38(VIl)) Measurement of Defined benefit
Obligations: Actuarial assumptions

2. Note (10) recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profits against which
deductible temporary differences and carried forward tax losses can be utilized.

3. Impairment of intangible assets: Key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts.

4. Note (39) Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: Key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits.

5. Note(44(A(i))) measurement of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) allowance for trade receivable and loans:
Key assumptions in determining the weighted average loss rate

3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized as an asset if and only if, it is
probable that future economic benefits associaced with the item, will flow to the Company and the
cost item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises its purchase price, directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for the intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the
item and restoring the site on which it is located. Any trade discounts, rebates, input tax credit (IGST/
CGST and SGST) or any other tax credit available to the company are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price.

Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalized only when it is probable
that the future economic benefits associated with that expenditure will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Borrowing costs to the extent related/attributable to the acquisition/construction of the Property , Plant
and Equipment that takes substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized
up to the date such asset is ready-for use.
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New RRPD Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is

derecognized.
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is calculated on the cost of items thereof less there

estimated residual values, on straight-line method over their respective estimated useful lives, which is
in line with the estimated useful lives as specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013,

Particulars Useful Life as per prescribed in
Schedule Il of the Act (year)

Leasehold Improvement* Lease Period

Computer and peripherals 3-6

Furniture and fixtures 10

Office equipment

Vehicle

Plant and Machineries 15

Electrical Installations and Equipment 10

*Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of the lease or useful life whichever is lower.

Depreciation on addition to property plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of
acquisition. Depreciation on sale/deduction from property plant and equipment is provided up to the date
preceding the date of sale, deduction as the case may be. Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in Statement of Profit and Loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

3.2 Other Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization.

The cost comprises purchase price, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition
for the intended use which includes any trade discounts, rebates, input tax credit (IGST/ CGST and SGST)
or any other tax credit available to the company are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Borrowing costs to the extent related/attributable to the a }plSJUQ@/conStructlon of intangible asset that

takes substantial period of time to get ready for their mtgmj&aa%se ar capitalized from the date it meets

capitalization criteria till such asset is ready for use. (j r <
i 1‘1{
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New RRPD Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful economic lives.

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If
the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization
period is changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

A summary of amortization period applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as below:

Particulars Useful life (yers)

Computer software 5-10

3.3 Fair value Measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

P In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

P In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
accessible to the Company.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. The Company's management determines the policies and
procedures for fair value measurement.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized into different levels within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the level
of inputs used in the valuation techniques as set out below.

P Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

P Level 2 —inputs other than quoted prices included in level one and Valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
P Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is based on unobservable market cata.
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New RRPD Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

3.4 Revenue recognition

Revenue from Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers. Revenue is measured
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, incentives, price
concessions, amounts collected on behalf of third parties, or other similar items, if any, as specified in
the contract with the customer. Revenue is recorded provided the recovery of consideration is probable
and determinable. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Revenue is recognized at a point in time when the goods are delivered at the agreed point of delivery.

Invoices are usually payable based on the credit terms agreed with customers which vary up to 90
days.

Other Income

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
the applicable interest rate. Interest Income is recognized on a basis of effective interest method as set
out in Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, and where no significant uncertainty as to measurability or
collectability exists.

Marketing Support

Marketing support income is recognized upon transfer of control of promised services to customers.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts,
incentives, performance bonuses, price concessions, amounts collected on behalf of third parties, or
other similar items, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue is recorded provided
the recovery of consideration is probable and determinable.

3.5 Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax is recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respuctively.

a) Current Income Tax:
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of the previous years. Current tax Assets and
liabilities represents the best estimates of the amounts expected to be recovered or paid to the taxation
authorities. The Tax Laws and Tax rates used to compute the amounts are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the
entity has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized balances and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realize the asset.and settle-the liability simultaneously.
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New RRPD Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

b) Deferred Tax:

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in financial statements.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the year and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be used.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the proba bility
of future taxable profit improve.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

3.6 Intangible asset under development

The Company capitalizes intangible asset under development for a project in accordance with the
accounting policy. Initial capitalization of costs is based on management’s judgement that technological
and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development project has reached a
defined milestone according to an established project management model. In determining the amounts
to be capitalized, management makes assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of
the project, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits.

3.7 Leases
The Company as a lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset, the Companyassesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset
(ii) the Company has substantlaliy all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through ey

of the lease and (iii) the Cp?pamyr 135, fhe\Wght to direct the use of the asset.
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New RRPD Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

At commencement or on modification of the contract that contains a lease component, the Company
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative
standalone prices. However, for the leases of property the company has elected not to separate non
lease components and account for the lease and non lease components as a single lease component.

The Company recognizes right-of-use asset and le.se liability representing its right to use the underlying
asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured
at inception shall comprise the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any
initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset and restoring the site on which it is located.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated
impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over
the lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset whichever is earlier. The estimated useful lives of right-
of use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use
assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the uresent value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
the Company uses incremental borrowing rate, on a lease-by-lease basis, may adopt either the
incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as
a whole.

The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees,
exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option
to terminate the lease. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount
to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made
and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect
revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

The company recognizes the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset and in the statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature
of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a
further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognizes any remaining
amount of the re-measurement in the statement of profit and loss.

For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately
presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.




New RRPD Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use asset and lease liability for leases of properties
that are having non-cancellable lease term of less than 12 months. The Company recognizes the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

3.8 Inventories

The inventory comprises traded goods which are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost of inventory of traded goods is arrived at based on actual cost of the “batch” which comprises cost
of purchase and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Provision is made for the cost of obsolescence and other anticipated losses, whenever considered
necessary.

3.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non-
financial asset or a Company of non-financial assets is impaired. If any such indication exists, the
Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount and the amount of impairment loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use, are tested for
impairment annually at each balance sheet date, or earlier, if there is an indication that the asset may
be impaired.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and recoverable
amount. Losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and reflected in an allowance account.
When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant
amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, then the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed through Statement of Profit and Loss.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value
in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing,
assets are accompanied together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely mdependent of the cash inflows of other assets or group of of assets (the
“Cash-Generating Unit” - CGU). '
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

3.10 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on best
estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that
probably requires an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or where a reliable
estimate of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recorded nor disclosed in the financial statements.
3.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash on hand, cash at banks and short-term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value and bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance
sheet.

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash on hand and cash at
banks and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months.

3.12 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(A) Financial assets

(i) Recognition and Initial measurement
At initial recognition, financial asset is measured at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial
asset not “at fair value through profit or loss” are measured at transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are explt’-:'_;n'sé&.irjkth_g statement of profit and loss.
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New RRPD Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

a) at amortized cost; or
b) at fair value through other comprehensive income; or
c) at fair value through profit or loss.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the related cash flows.

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and inte. 2st are measured at amortized cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method (EIR).

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amounts are taken through Other Comprehensive Income (‘OCI’),
except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognized in statement of profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognized,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is reclassified from equity to statement of profit
and loss and recognized in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included
in “Other income” using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI
are measured at fair value through statement of p -ofit and loss. Interest and dividend income from these
financial assets is included in “Other income”. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend
income, are recognized in statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments: All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a
business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in OCI subsequent changes in
the fair value in other comprehensive income. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from
OCl to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer
the cumulative gain or loss within equity.




New RRPD Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL)
model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on financial assets that are measured at
amortized cost and FVOCI.

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has
not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss, However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent years, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then
the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 months ECL.

Lifetime ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12 months ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the year end.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity‘expects to receive (i.e. all shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider all contractual terms of
the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension etc.) over the expected life of the financial
instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be
estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial
instrument.

In general, it is presumed that credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition if the
payment is more than 90 days past due.

~ ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the year is recognized as income/expense
in the statement of profit and loss. In balance sheet ECL for financial assets measured at amortized cost
is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria, the
Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized only when

a) the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset is transferred or
b) retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.




New RRPD Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
Where the financial asset is transferred then in that case financial asset is derecognized only if
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset is transferred. Where the entity
has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial
asset is not derecognized.

(B) Financial liabilities

(i) Recognition and Initial measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss and at amortized cost, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

(i) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held
for trading are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as fin:.nce costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Derecognition of Financial liability

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as
finance costs.
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New RRPD Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

(C) Embedded Derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-
derivative host contract — with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary
in a way similar to a standalone derivative. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are
separated if the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related
to the economic characteristics and risks of the host and are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives closely related to the host contracts are not separated.

Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of

the fair value through profit or loss.
(D) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

3.13 Employee Benefits

(a) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the year in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the year and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(b) Other long-term employee benefit obligations
(i) Defined contribution plan

Provident Fund: Contribution towards provident fund is made to the regulatory authorities, where the
Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the
Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis
which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee's State Insurance Scheme: Contribution towards employees' state insurance scheme is made
to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified
as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the
contributions made on a monthly basis which are chargeg to the statement of profit and loss.
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

(i) Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity: The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (covering eligible employees in
accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Flan provides a lump sum payment to
vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount
based on the respective employee's salary. The Company's liability is actuarially determined (using the
Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/gains are recognized in the other
comprehensive income in the year in which they arise.

Costs comprising service cost (including current and past service cost and gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements) and net interest expense or income is recognized in profit or loss.

The obligation recognized in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s
defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions
to the plans.

Compensated Absences: Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or
encashed within 12 months from the end of the year are treated as short term employee benefits. The
obligation towards the same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences
as the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months
from the end of the year end are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Company's liability
is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial
losses/gains are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

Leaves under defined benefit plans can be encas..ed only on discontinuation of service by employee.

3.14 Foreign Currency Transactions
(a) Functionai and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are
presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction. Gains/Losses arising out of fluctuation in foreign exchange rate between the transaction
date and settlement date are recognized in thES-f,_at'éfr_)ent of Profit and Loss.
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New RRPD Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are restated at the year end at the exchange rate
prevailing at the year end and the exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

3.15 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

The weighted average numbers of equity shares are adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus
element in the rights issue, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed
the number of equity shares outstanding, without corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all potential dilutive equity shares.

3.16 Share based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to the employees via the Share based long term
incentive scheme.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made
using an appropriate valuation model. That cost is recognized, together with a corresponding increase
in share options outstanding account in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-
settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date represents the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Expense or credit recorded in the statement of profit and loss for a period represents
the movement in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period and is
recognized in employee benefits expense.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
diluted earnings per share.

Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indlan Accountlng Stq,ndards) ules as issued from time to time. For the year ended




0B°L1 = & * 0541 = - - = 0841
wamgEIGuUIe
|
£T0T YMEW TE EZOT YMEW IE pouad ay3 104 TZOZ Mdw T EZ0Z YEW TE Sluaunsnipy sjassy ssauisng SuoRIpPY 7207 |udy T
e sy 'Sy 38 5y 1E sy fsucnanpag o uonEnEAaY ySnosyy je sy
pasnbay
Juswseduw) ¥20|q ss045)
8L6 197 ST £7°0 St = = = £5'9 £6°¢
oto aro 110 soo 9z0 = - - 600 L0
68'0 610 610 ooo 60T = - . 0T 800
93'0 500 300 - Lo Lo =
£00 00 oo oco 0o = = = 100 €00
871 210 ar'o 00 'l = - = STT 1E0
89 Fld § ¥ 44 4 9£'0 628 = & - £S'E 9g's
uoeleLIGIo])
€707 Yo TE €207 YMBN TE i o ZZOZ AW T £Z0ZYMelN T Siusuisnipy sassy ssauisny SR zzoziudy T
e 5y 1 5y e sy /suopanpag  jo uogenjeaay yanouy Esy
paJinbay
Nio|g 1aN uo jepasdag ¥20|q 55045
09vT - - Z 09'b1 0zE 2 - = 08'LT
09'vl - - E 09'v1 (153 > - - 08'LT
202 YR TE +202 £202 jud g| syuawsnl, 5@ g ud
¥Zo u”nn W TE #20 _.m_u._ns_ i3 pouad a3 404 ~on_t v1i vIoz “u.. W TE o h .”a. . mu.“:m ySnong suonippy €207 |udy T
Y e sy iesy 1|5y fsuonanpag  jo vonenjeaay painkioy e sy
Juawnedw) ¥70|q S50J5
19°L I8V 0zz {9z LY'ZT & . * z00 SY'IT
oo oz'o 00 r'o FE4] * = = F{e)1] se'0
wo 8€0 610 610 601 = - = = 60T
650 o oo 900 o N X = Lo
0w £0°0 100 00 oo = = = = +00
€11 ZE0 sto 810 W't = = = = 9T
B80S 18°€ vLT Loz BC'E = x . - 68'8
TT0T YUBIN TE PZOT YN TE ETOZIMEY T pZOZ UMEW 1T stuawgsnipy siassy S £Z0Z |Udy T
Esy Esy poyad ipy e " 'Sy .ﬁ:uﬁ:_u,u o uonen[eas YSnaks FUSRIRRV m
t Q0 jouoneEnensy pasnbay 1ESY
¥20[q 32N uopeardag ¥20|q 55019

{101

siejnoed

litmpoog g

®eL

sjesayduad pue Jaindwo?y
Asauiyory R JUE)4

UORE|[eIsu| |B211103(3

wawdinb3l aay0

asnjuang

513SSE paump

(Tt 310N J2424) 1355y 350 01 1
sjasse pasea)

SJERLEd

=o)L
(ey @10N sa5au) |1mpoog

sienoned

litmpoog

&oL
siesayduad pue saindwos
Aszunepy g uelg
uone|jelsuy| (ea3R(3
Juawdinbl a0
aunquusng
S}355E paump
(Tv 10N J3j2y) 1355y 350 01 Y8y
S}esse pases]

sie(naguey

uawdinba pue jue|d ‘Apadoid ¢

(pa3e1s asimiay1o ssajun suckjiN Ul i)

$Z0Z YJe TE Papua poliad ay) Joj sjuawaiess [eueury ayy jo ped Juuisoy sajon

QILINIM 3LVAIEd OdYd MaN



(paies asimIayI0 ssajun SUOH|I Ul )
¥Z0T Y24l TE papua poliad ayy Joj sjuawayess |epueuly ayj jo ped Sulwiog sajoN
Q3LIAIN ALVAINd Od¥N MIN



NEW NRPD PRIVATE IMITED
Notey forming part of the Financial Ststements for the period ended 18 March 1074
1% in Baillineg wnle otleradie dated ) -

T Other Financisl Anet

Pty At axat
31 Mareh 3024 11 Mareh 1028
Unseeureed cansideeed goods
Security Depotits {2t amoetived costa] LE1) a3
Tartal 8.97 & 81

B Defarred tan anets/[lahithes) {net)
Particutar

Aiwi Buat
31 March 1024 1 Mareh 2003

Daferred tax asset on account of:
Espenies pravided but sllowabile in income Takan payment

baris tn.oay am

O lnd A5 116 Adjustment L3L]

Gradulty & Loave Encashment (]

Tupacted Cradit Lows on Loans and adwances om

Unatisarbed depeeciation 0ok

Wnshsorbed fow 061

Tirdng dilference between tax depreciation and

depreciation charged in the books o oo

Nt deferred tox aisets 0.91 LED
81 Mote fa): vol

Parikulars s Al [Chasged]/ [Eharged)f Aiat

1 Aprll 2013 Creditad L1 Cradited Yo DL A4 Mareh 1004

Timéng dilprence botwreen ax depreciation and

depreciation charged in the booky am o oo
Evpenes provided bat allwatile i income ' as on
et bais om e by
On ind AS 116 Adjustment oy oor LAE]
Gestwity & Leave Encavhment o o0 nos
Ewpactod Coradit Losk an Loans and adwances oon o . um
Unabsorbed depreciation (A1) fom aor
Unahsarbed fogs (1] [[EE] a6
et Ned daterred tn svietsisbillny) 7] {o19) . (s
The Eompany has created deferred taw svsel on unsbsorbed depreciation and ohker Mema to the extent of def ered Lax iabilily
— T [Ehargad)) (Ehangedi/ Asan
1 April 2023 Crediledto PR L Credited 1o B 31 March 1073
Timing (Wference hetween tax depeeciation and
deprecintion charged in the books . .01 . oo
Fupenies provided hut allowable in incame Tax pn
payrnend b 0.00 oo} . oy
On Ind AS 116 Adjustment oo oo . an
Gratuity & Leave Encathmant ool aot o L+
Cxpected Credi Loss on Laarg and advirces 000 oo om
Unabsarbed depraciation . o . an
Unabworhed lnu . i a1 - 141
Met Mot deferred tax assetsf{lability] 0.0 168 P 169

8 Noncusrent Tas ssirbs [Net]

Particutars A

31 March 1034
Advance Intams 1 L]
Tatal .00
Prowiion for Taxatlon

Provision for Tavation

10 Inventories
At lawer of coxt Bnd net realiatile value
Stock in trade & .07 mn
Total )I._Il 217131




NEW RRRD PRIVATE UMITED
Mates forming part of the Financial $1atements for the period ended 31 March 2674

[%4n Milhoas unluss otherwiio stated)
11 Trade recelvable
Avat A at
Ptk 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Satured, canidered g =
Unsecured .
“Consadered good 100K
sigraieant incrase in coedit risk a0
1910
Lesa: fremected los alinuantey [CEE]
Total 3o
Fuanibyer elisilling wn:
Recetwibile from related auities (Mefer nole 421 B 1) o9
Receivabile from athen 144 {LA])
ce for eap it eves by foffawen::
Dp=ring Malance oy ao
Change in alawance for evpected creddit loss during the year waz ool
Whitten o'l during the year = :
Cloting Ralance 0.04 002
Agelng of Trade Recehvabls
As at 3§ March 2014
Particutars] Perind l':";;‘" “‘";\‘:"' Bl pavens 23¥ean Wwee than 3 Years Tatal
Nl d Trada . deted Gl uas [ aa a8
(1) Unitsspuited Tosde Roceloale -Which hive sigaificant
nerease in eredit flk
(Wi} Undispated Trade Receivable - Credit impaired . - . . .
{iv) Unisouted Trade Receivable « Considered Doubtist am n.o0 om oo
(] Divputed Trade Recarvable - Constdored Goad : . % "
{1 Disputed Trade Aeceivable - Considernd Dowbtful
Lesn: Allowance far expected credit inss fa.02) (LT jnol) o4}
Total 1435 0.7k [T 1485
A an 31 March 2013
Levs Than & fi Monthe o 1
Partirisdars] Period omiha Y 143 Yearn ES R ITTI Mese than 1 Yean Tatal
111 U idisputedt Trade Recrivable - Convdered Guod [T i 1w
i) Unedispaited Trade Wihich have significant conlit rush
[iith ndbipmri ed ¥o sl Boenivable - Credd snpaaed
(1) Uit Tanebi e ivalile - Cnevides oil Dvaiskitfuil oz "
v) Myputed Trade Recenolile - Cantidesed Good
|vil gt Trace Recerable - Canvidered Doubi ful
Aeis Alawance for expected credd lass 10621 (LI
Tutal i W70 nax 1908
11 Carhamd =ah sauluabenty
Pty s ot Ml
A1 March 1024 31 March 1973
Balances with hanky
o CuErEnt accnunty 1% am
Cash an hand a1 [¥L)
Total 13,97 [T
19 Otkes curront assety
Adwance 1o uanphicrs 741 i
Balance with Arvenue sitharities (3] 0hd
Frepalit Erprnses 010 o4
Stall Addvanced a19 1)
Total 30 o




NEW RRPD PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes forming part of the Financlal Statements for the period ended 31 f1arch 2024
(% in Millions unless otherwlse stated)

14

Equity Share capital

As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

a. Authorised Share Capital
10,000 (31 March 2023: 10,000) Equity Shares of INR 10 each 0.10 0.10
Total 0.10 0.10

b. Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:

10,000 {31 March 2023: 10,000) Equity Shares of INR 10 each 0.10 010
Total 0.10 0.10
. Reconclliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the As 3t 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

year

Particulars No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the period 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10
Add: Issued during the peried i = - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the period 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10

d. Rights, preferences and restrirtions attached to shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par valie of INR 10 per share. Each shareholder is entitled to on vote per share held, The company declares
and pays dividends in Indian runees. The dividend proposed by the Poard of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. In the event of liguidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential . The distribution will be In proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

e. Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Name of the sharcholder
No of shares % Mo of shares %
Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited including shares held by nominee 10,000 100.00 10,000 100.00
1.5hares held by holding Company/ultimate holding Company and/ or their subsl / assoclates
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
N th hel
ok e No of shares % No of shares %
Holding Company
Entero Healtheare Solutions Limited including shares held by nominee 10,000 100% 10,000 100%
g. Shareholding of Promotors at the end of the period
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Name of the shareholder % of To*al % change during - - % of Total % change during
No of sh No of sh
Ll b Share the period it e Share the perlad
Entero Healthcare Solutions Liy.ited® 10,000 100% - 10,000 160% -

w0t of 1Al 10,000 equity hares, Mr. Prabhat Aprawal holds 1 enquity share i e. 0.01% of total shares, as nominee of Ertero Healthcare Solitions Limited.

15

h.Mo class of shares have been issued as bonus shares or for consideration ather than cash by the Company during the period of five years immediately preceding the
current period end.

I.No class of shares have been bought back by the Company during the period of five years immediately preceding the current period end.

Other equity
Particulars ALt R

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance (3.580) 1.06
Add: Net Profit for the current period (9.781 4.97)
Less: Re-measurement (gain)/loss on post employment benefit obligation (net of tax) 001 [0.01)
Closing balance (13.69) (3.90)

Retainod earnings: Retained earnings are the profits/{loss) that the Company has.  ned/incurred till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or ather
distributions paid to shareholders. Retained earnings include re-measurement loss/[gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified ta the
staternent of profit and loss.
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NEW RRPD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 March 2024
(% in Milllons unless otherwlse stated)

16 Lease Liability

As at As at
i 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Long term  Short term Long term Short term
At amortised cost
Lease Liability 4.07 1.57 5.64 1.43
Total 4.07 1.57 5.64 1.43
17 Provisions

Particulars Long term  Shott term Long term Short term
Provision for employee benefits {(Refer note 32)

Provision for gratulty (unfunded) 012 0.04 0.05 0.01
Total Provisions 0.12 0.04 0.05 0.01

18 Borrowings
Particulars Long term _ Short term Long term Short term
Working capital Loan from Financial Institution B . - =

Other Loans & Advances{Unsecured)

Loans and Advances from Related parties* (Refer note 41) P 88.47 - 59,30
) 5 88.47 - 53.30
*Rate of Interest :11% to 13% p.a., payment terms - on demand
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2924 31 March 2023
19 Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises ard small enterprises 0.59

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises® 138 2.04
Total trade payables 1.97 2.04
Note -

1. There is no Unhilled and not Due trrde payables are outstanding at the period ended
2. No Proper Due is specified by the vendors, payment terms are as per general business practices

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2024

Outstanding from the date of transaction
Particul
articulars Less.thanl 1.2 Years 2.3 Years Maore than 3 Total
Vear Years
MSME 0.59 # - - 0.59

Other 1.38 0.00 - - 1.38
Disputed Dues - MSME - i " 1 =
Disputed Dues - Others - - - . b
Total 197 0.00 : - 1.97
As at 31 March 20.3

Out *~nding from the date of transaction
Particulz rs
Faan il 1-2Years | 2-3 Years Mo than 3 Total
'|"c|a_r Years
“MSME - = - . -
Other 2.0 - 2 - 2,01

Disputed Dues - MSME = % _ ~ "
Disputed Dues - Others - - s ; i
Tatal 2.04 - - - 2,04
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Notes farming part of the Financ'al Statements for the perind ended 31 March 2024
{% In Millions unless otherwise stated)

20

21

Diselosure relating to suppliers registered under MSMED Act based on the information available with the Company:

Particulars Az at e
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023

{a) Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year:

Principal and interest 0.59 .
Total 0,59 -
(b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, along - -
with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each

(c) The amount of interest due and payab'e for the period of delay in making payment (which - -

have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without = 'ng the interest
specified under the MSMED Act.

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. .

(e) The amewnt of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, -
until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the

purpose of disallowance of a deductible exy ertMUTE Under section 73 of the MSMED Act.

Asat As at
Particu'ars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Other financial liabilities

Emplayee liabiliti~s 0.78 0.59
Interest accrued and due on borrowings (Refer Note 41) a4.27 6.94
Other Payables 310 1.69
Interest accrued but nnt due on ICD - 2.62
Total other financial llabilities 8.15 13.84
Other current liabllitles

Statutory due payable 0.61 0.85
Total other current llabilities 0.61 0.85
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Notes forming part of the Finanrial Statements for the pericd ended 31 Miech 2024

(T in Milllons unless otherwise stated)

24

25

le-PL

26

Particulars

Revenue from Operatinns

Sale of poods

Other operating income

Total Revenue from contracts with customers

Analysis of revenues by srgments:
Trading of pharmaceutical and surgical products,

Revenue based on Geography
Domestic

Export
Total

Revenue based on timing of recognition
Revenue recognition at a point in time
Revenue recognition over period of time
Total

Other income

Particulars

Interest on unwinding of security deposits
Miscellaneous income

Total other income

Purchase of Stock-in-trede

Particulars

Purchases of Stock-in-trade

Total

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade
Particulars

Inventories at the beginning of the period
-Stock in trade

Less: Inventories at the end of the perlod
-Stock in trade

Net decrease/ (Increase)

Employce benefits expense
Particulars

Salaries, wages, bonus and other allewanens
Contribution to Provident Fund and ESI

| eompi Gratuity and compensated absences expenses (Refer note 33)

27

28

Staff welfare exponsos
Total employee benefits expense

Fimance costs
Partieulars

Interest Experses
On Loan from Holding Company (Refer note 42)
On bank loan

Interest on Lease Liabllities

Bank charges

Total finance costs

Depreclation and amortization expense

1on PreDepreciation on Properly, Plant and Equipment (Refer note 5}

Depreciation an ROU
Total depreciation and amortization expense

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the vear ended
31 March 2023

27491 230,93
0.19
275.10 230.93
27510 230.93
275.10 230,93
275.10 73083
274,91 230.93
274,91 230,93
Faor the year cnded For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
0.03 no3
0.03 0.73
0.07 0.76

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

265.90 222.90
265.90 222.90
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
27.31 2245
27.31 22,45
{36.02) (21.31)
(36.02) (27.31)
(8.71) 14.86)
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
821 6.76
0.44 0.35%
0.08 0.05
017 0.16
8.90 7.32
For the year ended For the year endcd

31 March 2024

31 Mareh 2023

474 7
477 -
0.61 0.74
0.33 -
10.45 8,45
0.46 0.53
1.74 171
2,20 2.24
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period padad 31 March 2024
(% In Millions un'ess othervise stater)

"y

29  Other expenses

Phikietire For the y~ar ened For thr year poded
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Legal and professional charges 0.27 0.14
Travelling expenses 0.02 0.07
Power and fuel 0.32 0.24
Repairs and maintenance 0.09 0.08
Distribution Cost 0.83 0.68
Printing and stationery 0.18 017
Communication expenses (411} 008
Business promotion expense 0.00 .
Office expenses 0.03 004
Business Suppart Charges (Refer note 42) 258
Net Impairment losses on trade receivables/financial assets 0.01 0.01
Auditor's remuneration [Refer note below) 014 0.13
Insurance 0.08 0.04
Miscellaneous expenses 0.86 0.58
Total other expenses 5.42 2.26
——*Note : The folloving is the kregteup of Auditors remenarat'on (exclusive of taxes)
" ks Ao _ Fertteyerren'ed For t“¢ year ended
o s 31 March 224 31 March 2023
As aurditor: .
Statetary ae it 009 0.08
In other caparsn
Tax audit 0.03 0.03
Other ma‘ters 0.02 G.02
Total 0.14 0.13
— L=
30  Ircome Tax

Current tax

Current tax on profits for the perind

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods
Total Current Tax - .

Deferred tax expense (income) 0.79 {1.65)
Total tax expense 0.79 {1.65)

Mote: In view of losses, there is no current tax expense for the year and accordingly, the disclosure of reconciliation of tax expense with accounting
profit/{loss) multiplied by statutory income tax rate is not applicable.

31 Earnings pershare

Profit attributable to the equity holdrs of the Company (A) (9.79) {4.96)
Welghted Average number of thares issuied for Basic EPS (B) 10,000.00 10,000.00
Adjustmant for calculation of Dilvted EFS (¢ ) - -
Weighted Average number of shares issued for Diluted EPS (D= B4C) 10,000.00 10,000.00

Dasic and dili*od EPS 'r IN7 - {£73.01) (496.02)




NEW RRPD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 March 2024
(T in Milllans unless otherwise stated)

32  Employee benefits

I. Defined contribution plans *

The Company has classified the various benefits provided to employees as under:
Provident Fund _

Employee State Insurance Fund

4

L

The expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan -

For the year endnd Fer the year ended

Particulars ¥

" 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Contribution to Provident Fund 0.15 0.21
Employers Contribution to Employee state insurance 0.08 0.14

Defined benefit plans
Gratulity

The Company pravides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period
of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable an retirement/ termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per manth
computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service, subject to a payment ceiling of INR 20,00,000

The actuarial valuation of the defined benefit obligation was carried out at the balance sheet date. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and
the related current service cost and past service cost were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the details of the emplayee benefit obligation as at balance sheet
date:

For the y~ar ended . For the yaar ended

N 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
SrNo  Defined beneft p'ans Gratuity Gratuity
(Unfunded) (Unfunded)
1 Evpenses recogniced in statement of profit and lnss dyring the paripd;
Present value of defined bemofit obligat's = at the baginning of the yaar 0.06 0.05
Current senvice cost 0.07 -
Past service cost__ 0.01
Expected return on plan aseets -
Net interest cost / (income) on the net defined benefit liahility / (asset) 0.01 -
Actuarlal (gains) [ lnss (0.01) 0.01
Total expenses 0.14 0.06
] Expenses recogised in n*her comprehensive income
Actuarial {gains) / losses due to demographic assumption changes in defined benefit
abligations {0.01)
Actuarial {gains) / losses due to financlal assumption changes in d=fined benefit abligations 0.00 (0.00)
Actuarial {gains|/ losses due to experience on defined benefit obligations 0.01 (0.01)
Return on plan assets excluding Interest income 0.01 -
Total expenses (0.00) (0.01)
n Net asset /(liability) recognised as at balance sheet date:
Present value of defined benefit obligation 0.14 0.06
Funded status [surplus / (deficit)] 0.14 0.06
L] Movements in present value of defined Fenefit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the period 0.06 0.02
Current service cost 0.07 0.05
Past service cost = -
Interest cost 0.01 0.00
Actuarial (gains) / loss 0.01 (0.01)
Benefits paid -
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the perind 0.14 0.06
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NEW RRPD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period ended 31 March 2024
{% in Millions unless atherwise stated)

v Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

For the year ended For the year ended

* et : 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Expected cash flows over future years (valued on undiscounted basis):
15t Following Year ; 0.04 0.01
2nd Following Year 0.00 0.00
3rd Following Year 0.00 0.00
Ath Following Year 0.03 0.00
Sth Following Year 0.3 0.01
Sum of Years 6 To 10 0.08 0.05
Sum of Years 11 and above 0.07 0.05

v Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below:

Increase [ (decrrase) on present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year

(i) +1% increase in discount rate {0.01) {0.00)
(i) =1% decrease In discount rate ; 00 000
{iii) #1% increase in rate of salary increase 0.01 .00
(iv) 1% decrease in rate of salary Increase (0.10) {0.00)
Sensitivity analysis method

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasanably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of

the reporting period, while halding all other assumptions constant,
a The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit abligation as it is unlikely

; that the change In assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated,
o Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitlvity analysls, the ;|  “ent value of the projected benefit obligation has been caleulated using the
» projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit
ohligation as recognisad in the Falance sheet,
Thera was no change in the methads and assumptiens used In preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years,

v Actuarial assumptions: For the yem ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Discount rate 7.13% 7.28%
2 Expected rate of salary increase A.00% 8 00%
3 Rate of Employee Turnover 20,00% 20.00%
4 Mortality Rate During Employment
Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14] Ult Mortality (2012 14) Uit
L) Retirement age 58 years 58 years
Notes:
@) The rate used to discount post-empluyment benefit obligaticns Is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reparting period
on government bonds,
b) The estimates of future salary increpses considered in the actuarial valuition take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other

relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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%

Notes forming part of the Financial Statrments for the period ended 31 March 2024

(X In Milllons unless otherwise stated)

EE]

34

35

36

37

Contingent liabllitles & commitments
There is no contingent lahility and commitments,

Value of Imports calculated on C.1.F basis
Purchase of stock in trade

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a mannar cons'stent with the internal reporting provided to the Chiel Operating Decision Maker (*CODM") of the
Company. The director of the Company acts as the (CODM). The Company operates only in one business segment i.e. trading of pharmaceutical and surgical
products and hence, the Company has only one reportable segments as per Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”,

Capital Managrment

Far the purpose of the Company’s carital management, capital includes issued eonity capital and all other equity reserves attrihutable to the equity holders
of the Company. The primary objective of the Crmpany’s capital management is to safeguard the Company’s ability to remain as a going concern and
mwimise the shaschel'er value.The C-mpany m=rageg its capital structure and makes adjustments In light of chanpes in economic eanditions. The
Company includes within net debt, interest bearing brrrowings and lease liabilties net of rash and bank balances. As at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,
the Company has negative total equity. The Company is baving finarcial support from its holding company far weorking capital requirement.

For the year ended For the year ended
s 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Borrowlngs
Long term and Short term borrowings 88.47 59.30
Less: cash and cash equivalents (13.97) (0.28)
Adjusted net debt (A) 74.50 59.02
Total Equity (B) (13.59) (3.80)
Gearing Ratio (A)/(7) (5.48) (15.55)

Events after reporting date
There have been no events after the reporting date tat require disclosure in these financial statements
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4 Motes forming part of the Financial Statements for the period enderd 31 March 2074
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38 Falr value measurements

A. Accounting classification and fair values.

The following tab'e shows the carry'ng amqu=ts and frir velues of financial assets and finzncial labilities, Including their levels In the fair value

hierarchy. It foes not Include fir value Information for financisl assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carying arountisa
reasonable approximation of fair value.

Carrylng Amount
Particulars — pp— Amortized Total
Cost
Financial assets and llabil'ties as at 31 March 2024
Non-current financial assets
Other financial assets . . 23.49 23.49
Total - - 23.49 2349
Mon-current financial liabilities
Lease Liabilty - - 29,66 29.66
Current financial liabllities
Trade payables - - 303 3.03
Other financial liabilities - - 49.70 49.70
Total - - B2.39 82.39
v i Carrying Amount
Particulars o AToc Amortized Total
Cost
"~ Financial assets and 'abilities as at 31 Mrreh 2023 -
Mon-current financia! assets
Qther financial assets . - 0.31 0.31
Current finarcial agsate
Trade receivables . . 19.08 19.08
Cash and cash equivalents . - 0.28 0.28
Total - - 19.67 19.67
Non-current financial Hahilities
Lease Liabilty 5 64 5.64
Lease Liabilty 1431 143
Rorrowings 59.30 589.30
Trade payables - . 2.04 204
Other financial liabilities - - 11,84 13.84
Total - - 82,25 82,25

B. The carrying amourts of trade receivables, trade payables, denosits, other receivables, cash and cash equivalent including other current bank
balances-and other liahilities including deposits, creditors for capital expenliture, etc. are considered to be the same as thelr fair values, due to

C. Falr Vialue Hi=rerchy

~ Thesfsirwalue-of financial Instruments as referred to above have been classif'ed into three catepories depending on the inputs used in the valuation
technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority ta quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and
lowest priority *o unobservable inputs (Level 3 melsuremen*s®,

Level 1: Level 1 hlerarchy inchides financial Instriments messured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments and mutual funds that
have quoted price, The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stack cychanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting
periad,

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation technigues which maxinise the
use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If afl significant inputs required to fair value an instrument ars
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This 1s the case far
unlisted equity securities included in level 3.
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Notes forming part of the Financlal Statements for the perlod ended 31 March 2024

(% in Milllons unless otherwise stated)

39 Financial Risk Management
The company has In place comprehensive risk management policy in order to identify measure, monitor and mitigate various risks pertaining to its
business. Along with the risk management policy, an adequate internal control system, commensurate to the size and complexity of its business, is
maintained to align with the philosophy of the company. Together they help in achieving the business goals and objectives consistent with the company's
strategies to prevent inconsistencies and gaps between its policies ar  oractices. The Board of Directors/commititees reviews the adequacy and
effectiveness of the risk management policy-and Internal control system. Tue company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and
execute its business strategies,
The company has exposure to the following risks arising frem financial instruments:
o Credit risk
» Liquidity risk and
* Market risk

(A) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of finarcial 1nss to the corpany if 2 custc mer or cotinterparty to a financial instrument falls to meel its contractual ebligations, and
arlses principally from the comoany's trade #nd other receivahles. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the mavimum credit risk exposure,

5

i} Trade and Other Recelvables

« Trade receivables ars typ'r.a[ly urlsnrursd and are derived frory revenue earned from customers located in India. Credit risk has always been managed by
-the company through credit appmunls establishing credt limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the company
grants credit terms in the normal course of brsiness.

Summary of the compay's exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers is as follows:

For the year For the year
Particulars | ended ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Unsecured

-Considered good 14.85 19.08
-Considered doubtful 0.04 0.02
Gross Trade Receivables ) i 14,89 19,11
Less: Loss Allowance (0.04) (0.02)
Net Trade Recelvables 14.85 19,08

On aceount of adoption of Ind AS 109, the comnany uses evpected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss. The company computes the expected
credit loss allowance as per simplified approach for trade receivables based on available external and internal credit risk factors such as the ageing of its
dues, market infarmation ahout the customer 2 3d the carrpany’s bistavical experience for customers. The corrpany has used a practical expedient by
computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit
loss experience and is based an the apeing of the receivable 4ays and the rates as given in the provision matrix

ii) Loans and financlal assets measured at amortized cost
Loans and advarnes given comprises af inter enmpany leans hence the risk of default from these companies are re note The Company monitors each loans
and advances given and mabes Ay spacific provision wheraver required,

i, Cash and hank balances
= The company held cash and cash equivalent and other bank balance of INR 13.97 million at 31 Marh 2024 (INR 0.28 million at 31 March 2023}, The same
-are held with bank and financial institution counterparties with good credit rating. Also, company inyests its short term surplus funds in bank fixed deposit
which carry no market risks for short duration, therefore dees not evpose the company to credit risk,

Iv. Othr-s
Apart from trade receivables loans and cash and bank balances , the company has no other financial assets which carries any significant credit risk,

(B) Liquidity risk

Liquicity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivaring cash or another financial asset, The company's approach to ma:  ‘ng liquidity is to ensure, as far as pessible, that it will have sufficient liquidity
to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
company's reputation. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected
cash flows.
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« Notes forming part of the Fina 1cta] Stvterents for *he reriad ended 23 March 2024
(X In Millions unless otherwise stated)

(1) Maturities of financial llabilities

The fallewing-aresthe-remaining contractual maturities-of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and inclide

contractual Interest payments.

Contractual maturitles of financlal llabllitles Less than one year one to five years Mygethan Total

31 March 2024 five years

Lease Liabilities 2.04 4.49 5 6,53
Short term borrowings 88.47 - 88.47
Trade Payables 1.38 - 138
Other financial liabiities 8.15 x 8.15
Tetal 100.04 4.49 = 104.53
Contractual maturit’es of finar+ial liabilities More than

31 March 2023 Less than one year one to five years five years Total

Lease Liahilities 2.04 4,49 - 6.53
Short term borrowings 59.30 - 59.30
Trade Payables 2.04 2,04
Other financial liabilities 13.84 - - 13.84
Tatal 77.22 4.49 = 81,71
(C) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in maricet prices - soich 2s foreign evchange rates, interest rates and equity prices — will affert the company's income or
the value of its holdings of financial Instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within

acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. The company's exposure tn, and management of, these risks is explained below.

(1) Foreign curren-y risk

Forelgn currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial Instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreipn rxchange rates. The company caters mainly
ta the Indian Market , Most of the trwnsactions are denominated in the company's functional currency ie. Rupees. Hence the company 15 not materially

exposed to Foreign Currency Risk,

(1) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cashflows of a fnancial instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market Interest rates. There

are no externnl Sarrowings in the Ce

y and herce not exposed ta interest rate risk,
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40 Disclosure related to Leases
Company as Lesree

{A) Carrylng value of right of use assets at the end of the reporting period

Balance at the beginning of the period
Additions

Depreciation chiarge for the period
Balance at the end of the period

(8) Change in carrying value of lease liabilit'es at the end of the reporting period

Balance at the beginning of the period

Additions

Deletion

Payment of lease liabilities .
Finance cost during the rerind
Balance at the end of the period

{c) Maturity analysis of lese linbiliting
Less than one year
Ore to five years
More than five years
Total und'scounter lnase li~hilit'ss at reparting pecod
e Lease liabilities included fn tha stote=- nt o” fla=rin" rasittan ot th e = ariad ended

= (D) Amounts ra=agaised in statemeant of p:m‘lt_ or loss
Interest on lease llabllities
Depreciation of Right to llse Assets
(E) Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flovrs
Total Cash out{lew: for leares

Impairment testing of Goodwill

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 1024 31 March 2023
6.82 5.00
= 353
(1.74) 1.71)
5.09 6.82
1.06 4.96
140
(2.04) (2.04)
0.61 0.74
5.64 7.06
2.04 1.43
4.49 5.64
6.53 7.06
5.64 1.06
0.61 Q.74
1.74 11
2.04 2.04

The recoverable amount of a CGU is based on fair va'ue less costs to sefl. The fair value is estimated using discounted cash flows over a year of 5 years
Cash flows beyond § years is estimated by capitalising the future maintainable cash flows by an appropriate capitalisation rate and then discounted
using appropriate discount rate, This fair value measurement was categorised as a Level 3 fair value based on inputs in the valuation technique used.

Operating margins and growth rates for the five year cash flow projections have been estimated based on past experience and after considering the
financial hudg=ts/forneasts provided by the manap-mant. Other key assumptions used in the estimation of the recaverable amount are set out below.

historical data from beth external a~d Interr.z| souzes,

Partieulees
Discourt rate

Terminal value growth rate
Revenue grewth rate

5 Thevalues assignad to the kry assumptions reprerert managerent's assessment of future trends in the relevant industry and have been based on

As at As at
31 Murch 2024 31 March 2023
18.44% 23.23%
5.00% 7.00%
15.00% 15.00%

With regard to assessment of recoverablz amoint, no reascnalably possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cost the carrying

amount of the CGL's to exceed their recoverable amount.

The Company has also performed sensitivity analysis calculations an the prajections used and discount rate applied, Company has concluded that,
given the significant headroom that exists, and the results of the sensitivity analysis performed, there is no significant risk that reasonable changes in

any key assumptions would cause the carrying value nf goodwill 1o exceed its value in use,
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NEW RRPD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of th ments for the perlod anded 31 March 2624
1% In Millians unless olherwie siated)

41 iged forelg ¥
Tha Company's has no foseign currency exposure.

A4 Ratle Anal
Particiilars [Hin ecator [Benomnater [ 31 March 2028 | 31 March 2123 | Varlance % Reaton lor varlance
] Cutrent Ral o Curtent Assets Current Lisbinjes L 407 064 5.0Us [ Varance is not materic!
Shart term and long term
(b Debie-Equity Ratin Sharehalier's Equity |
borrawing _tesy (15.62 -58.33% [nm- siplanation | |
. Farning before interest
[£] Dbt Servie e Coverige Ratin ad Yo Delst Seruloe [ [ ul 0 36 16% | Reter erplanatson 3
{d) Return an Equity ario et Proti Aftes Tax [verage |aneite netvorth | (0 36)] 1. 354 4 398 [Auter eantamitan 2 |
Tveritory lumaver ratio. Cost of goouy sold | Average inventary H wix| B 76] -7 34% [Wanance a mat materal
Trade Receivables turnover ratia Med credit saley Average Irade recenvables | 1633 I lll_lﬂ b B 1% Hete explanton 4
Trade rayables turnever ratio Credit Augragr Trade payah'e 3117 | a2 4z| 21 79% | Refer explanation 4
‘Working Capatal (Current
LR il Al Assets-Current Liabilities) [7.43) [LEH -10BA% |Varkance oot material
III!H&I profit ratio et profit after tay Nt Saley 10.03); [E1E) 0.00% | Variance s not material
= 'Flmlng before interest
O Retien.on Cipital enplortd and Tax e Comitul Emplived {005 .10 35.17% |Refor evplanation 1 |
N Earving Es'orn Inlsrast
D RTIDR  Ee and Tax ]m"" bk | 002 I 0.02 | qn.mu]mﬂ explanation 3
Explnation for vartance
1. Ratia de dua b Intreade in s and lower prafitabiiiny L i ¥
3. fiatlo decreased due o lrwer sarsing
3. Ratio incresved due (o better wInagement salay,

A Ratlo decreaied due 1o bettar trade payable management

Aeconcliation af guarter!, returns or statcments Aled with banks or financlal Instliiutions

Amount ax per
bonky of : ”M":‘
Accounts g
Difference (In
Qartet Kame:of Ronk Particolen “"'::::‘r" the quarterly | R Miligny) | "0 1 Diserenancies
ratura/
o “:'n,“n_ml tin atement |In
N ArlonsHin [re—
INR Millfans)
Invriitory -
Har 74 Virin Creditary |
Seblon [ - . .
vt ary I G 10,85 L] pariod end Closing
Dec 13 Wi Cred. Lo i 1.5 1580 1.9 Adiurbrents ard
Debiurs | EE S0 12.80) rechMicathin
Inventony i 0.7 26 8b [T Parind 2nd Clrsing
Sep-13 Wivriti Creditors | B.05 11,79 [2.74) Adfustrnens and
¢ Gritors 1 1. E| 0.09) rechiniogtisa
A5 @ther Statutary Infarms *an:
1) Detalis of bemansl praprey hebd
The Company do not have any Rennml propesty, where any proceeding has beer Initlated or pendieg againgt the Company far hiplding any Beaam| prapery
my with struck off
The Company dy have any with ies siruck off.

{IH) Reglstration af charges ar satisfactian with Registror of Companies
The Compary do not have any charges o satisfaction which [s yet 1o be registerad with ROC Beyand the statutory peeod.
[iv] Details of erypta currency or viFtual curreney
The Company have not traded ar nvested in Cry v or Virtual € w tluring the fi | year
(v} WtiBisation of barrowings availed from banks and financial Institutions
The Campany have not advanced ar extended loan of imvested funds 1o any othes peruonfs) o sntayies), mehinmg foregn entities (InTemediaries] weih the undeetanding
That the intesmediary shall

{a) directly a¢ inditoetty lond oo ivvest in ather persons o entities identificd in any mannes whatsoever by or on beball of the campany (LEUmate Naneliciarnes] ot

b} provide any puaranioe, securllv or the Whe 1o o ar behalf of the Ulimat = Seneficines
Thee Compary have nat recensed sny lird fiam sy personls) or entityfies), ncluding fareign enfstins [Fundmg Party] with the understanding (whelhes secorded s witng
of atherwise) thal the Company shll:

[a) dieeetdy or indiractby lend of Invet in sthar perians or satties identdied i any ma=nee wihatsamves by or oo behall of the Funding Party (Uftimate Beneticiaries | o

b] provide any quaraniee, security or the ke to or an b-half of the Ultmate Renelicaries,
v} Undisclogad tncama
The Campany daes nat have any undisclosed incame which is not recorded in the banks of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the yoar

[ull) Wikl defaulter
The Company has nnt been declated wilful defaulter by any bank of finaactal institotion or by any government authorities,
{wili} Compliance with number of layers of companias ~
Tha company hint complied with the member of Wyers preseribod undor clause #7) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies {Restriction an number of Layers)
Rubes, 2017,
(I} Compliance with approved scheme(s) of srrangements ]
The company has not entered into any schame of ar which has on eurrent or previout financlal year,

{u] Title deeds of immavable praperties nat held in neme of the company
The title dreds of ail the immavabile r ~perties {othar than properties where the company & the lessee and the bease arangements sre duly evecubed in Favour of the
Irssee) are held in the name of the Company during the cusrent and previous year

() Waluiation of PPE, Intanglble assets and Investment proparty
The company has not revalued its property, plant and equiament (Including Right of use assets) or Intangible asseds of both during the current or previous year,




NEW RRPD PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the Financind Statemonts for the period ended 31 March 2024

1 I Milimns unless stharwise stated)
{ll) At Trsll

The Minktry ef Carparate A*faies (MCA) hay prescribed a new requicement for coopanies under the provise to Rule 3(1) of the Companies [Accounts) Ruley, 2004 sspeisd by the
Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 eequilring companies, which uses accounting soltware far maintaining its books of accounts, shall use orly such accounting software which
hat a feature of recording audi trofl of each and every transactian, creating an edit by, of gach change mady in the booky of accounts along with the date when such changes were made

d the audit trall cannot be disabled.

Campany has iwed an accounting snftware for revanue, bifing and reretvables, pur-hases and paysbles and inver tary mznagomant during the perind from Ajril 1, 2023 Wl Jamery 34,
2024, which did nat has a feature of recarding st tradl (et log) faclity ether at applicatian level or st databass level.

Further. the Company has used anather arcounting softwre Yor -t aintalning it borks of agcount during the perlad Fubruary 1, 2024 1l March 31, 2024, which-hag a feature of recording
sudit trall fedit lag] fac@ty, and the same has been enabled and operated threughout the period for al refevant transactions recorded In the accounting seftwares, Further there ware na
Instances of audit tradl feature being tampered with in respect of this saftware.

The company uses saltware / IT anpieatinng 'o maintain iy books of accounts and ather Loaks ard papsrsin electmnie mode (*Clectaranie recards®]. During the year,
I on senver physic v leeated in indea on daily basis, a5 required by Companies (Accounts) Aules, 2014

[illl] Backug of braks of aceounts
the Comgrany has sckuny of thi
[ax amended).

46 Previous reporting period figures have been regrouped/ reclassilied, where necessary, ta conform ta this reporting penod's dassification

s per gur report of even date
Far Argee & Co.
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